
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., May 14, 2021 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing –Friday, May 07, 2021 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, May 12, 2021 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – April 08, 2021  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

                       PAGE (S)                          

                                                                                         

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution No. FY2021-012 ………………………………………………..                    1 - 2 

Resolution commending and congratulating the GHURA  

Apprenticeship program graduates Class of 2021. 

 

2. Contract Cancellation / Intent of Award ……………………………..                  3 - 12 
        GHURA-10-02-2020-AMPs 1, 3, & 4; Renovation of (8) Public Housing Units 

 

V.      CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

             1.  A/E Manager’s Update 
 

2. FY2020 Audit Report 
 
 
 
VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, June 11th @ 12:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 



Pacific Daily News - 05/07/2021

May 11, 2021 2:12 pm (GMT +10:00) Powered by TECNAVIA

36

F
R
ID

A
Y
,
M
A
Y
7
,
2
0
2
1

❚
P

A
C

IF
IC

 D
A

IL
Y

 N
E

W
S

Turn here for
your next vehicle

Discover your
new home

Find a new job
or career

Household,Jobs
Homes
Rentals

& Auto

CLASSIFIEDS
Pets &
Furniture,

Place an ad online TODAY!

Guampdn.com/Classifieds
Or call (671)472-1PDN (1736)

PDN LobbyHours: Monday–Friday 8am–5pm

BUSINESS & SERVICES 
DIRECTORY

To promote your 
service, call 472-1736. 
The Directory runs 
every Sunday, Monday, 
Wednesday and Friday.

HOME IMPROVEMENT
 K .L .S .O. CONS TRUCTION
 Ce ll:  888-29 42

 Ne w & G e ne ra l Cons truc tion • Re pa ir 
 • W a re h ous e  • Iron F ra m e  

 • All Re pa ir Cons truc tion • D e m olit ion 
 • Inte rior M a inte na nc e

NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OF THE GUAM HOUSING 

AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY

The Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority (“GHURA”) will 
hold its Regular Meeting of the GHURA Board of Commissioners on 
Friday, May 14, 2021 at 12:00 PM. This Board Meeting is open to 
the public via teleconference.

If you would like to join the meeting, please contact  Audrey Aguon 
at 475-1378 by Wednesday, May 12, 2021 for more information.

For special accommodations, contact Katherine Taitano 
at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.

is looking to hire for the following positions:

• HEAVY EQUIPMENT OPERATOR
• CRANE OPERATOR

• LINEMAN
• GENERAL HELPER

• SENIOR ESTIMATOR (ELECTRICAL)

Interested applicants may pick-up an 

176 Pedro Benavente St., Barrigada.

To schedule interview appointment,



Pacific Daily News - 05/12/2021

May 12, 2021 1:16 pm (GMT +10:00) Powered by TECNAVIA

28

W
E
D
N
E
S
D
A
Y
,
M
A
Y
1
2
,
2
0
2
1

❚
P

A
C

IF
IC

 D
A

IL
Y

 N
E

W
S



 

 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., April 08, 2021 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the    
 Bylaws of   the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board  
 meeting was called to order at 12:01 P.M., Friday, April 8, 2021 at the GHURA  
 Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Flores. He stated that  
 4 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, indicating a quorum and  
 that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. He also stated that Vice Chairwoman  
 Guzman would be attending the meeting shortly. 

 

 
PRESENT: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCE) 
Sabino Flores, Chairman 
George Pereda, Commissioner 
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner 
Anisia Delia, Commissioner 
 
ABSENT: 
Monica Guzman, Vice 
Chairwoman 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
Anthony Perez, Esq.  

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Ray Topasna, Executive Director                       
Elizabeth Napoli, Deputy Director               
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                  
Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator       
Katherine Taitano, CPD/RP&E   Manager     
Andrew Manglona, A/E Planner                           
Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Supervisor                  
 
PUBLIC: (VIA ZOOM VIDEO 
CONFERENCE) 
Katie Pierce, Portfolio Management 
Specialist, Honolulu Field Office HUD 
Amanda Jones, Student 
Haidee Eugenio, The POST 
Gerry Partido, PNC 
Jesse Wu, Director Honolulu Field Office 
HUD 
Mark Chandler, CPD Director Honolulu 
Field Office HUD 
 

  

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

           1st Printing – Thursday, April 01, 2021 
          2nd Printing – Tuesday, April 06, 2021 

ACKNOWLEDGED. The Chairman indicated the agenda and announcement 

were posted in the Pacific Daily News.  

 

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 1 of 6



 

 

 

 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES 
[042/21] Chairman Flores made a motion to approve the minutes of the previous 

board meetings of February 26, 2021 and March 04, 2021 as corrected.  

Commissioner Delia seconded the motion. With no objections by the other board 

members, the motion was passed.     

                                                                                                          

                                                                                        

 IV.   NEW BUSINESS 

1. [043/21] Resolution No. FY2021-010 
Resolution requesting an additional Housing Special Position in the Public 
Housing – AMP#3. 

               
                Director Topasna stated: 

● Management is requesting that the board approve an additional Housing 
Specialist position for AMP3. 

● An additional Housing Specialist position is needed to relieve an 
excessive workload which include: tenant move ins, tenant 
documentation filing, preparing and delivering tenant renewal 
certifications, responding to tenant complaints, counseling tenants 
regarding lease violations, preparing issuance of lease violations, and 
conducting unit inspections.  

● Management is hopeful that the addition of the second Housing Specialist 
position would improve on file keeping integrity and fewer audit 
findings.  

● The Classification rate for the position is LG3, Step 1 (A), $32,856 per 
annum. 

● Deputy Director Napoli added that AMP3 has the budget for an additional 
Housing Specialist position. 

                     
                 Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about staffing total versus total budget. Director  
                 Topasna stated that GHURA has a total of 104 employees with an $81,000,000       
                 operating budget, however, with low income housing tax credits and the oversight    
                 of Section 108 loan guarantee to build the Charter school, GHURA’s approximate  
                 budget was at $160,000,000. He added that Personnel costs is about 6% of  
                 GHURA’s entire operations.  
                     
                 Chairman Flores acknowledged the presence of Mr. Jesse Wu, from the Honolulu  
                 HUD office.  
                     
                 There were no further questions. 
 
 
                   [044/21] Commissioner Pereda moved to approve Resolution FY2021-010  
                    requesting an additional Housing Special Position for Public Housing AMP#3.  

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 2 of 6



 

 

 

                   Also that the classification rate for that position is established at pay range         
LG3, Step 1 (A), $32,856 per annum in conformance with the Civil Service     
Commission’s Wage structure and is entitled to the benefits provided by                        
GHURA.  Commissioner Delia seconded the motion. With no objections by the 
other board members, the motion was passed.  

 
 

2. [045/21] Resolution No. FY2021-011  
 A resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Guam Housing and Urban 
Renewal Authority authorizing participation in the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program; authorizing a 
loan from the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority to the learning 
institute in the principal amount of twelve million dollars ($12,000,000) for the 
purpose of financing the acquisition, construction and equipping of a new 
educational campus for the iLEARN Academy Charter School; and authorizing 
the Executive Director of the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority to 
take all actions necessary to accomplish the undertakings in connection, 
therewith, including the execution and delivery of all documents contemplated 
thereby. 

 
Director Topasna deferred to Ms. Katherine Taitano, Chief Planner, to discuss 
Resolution No. FY2021-011.  

 
                 Ms. Taitano stated: 

● Resolution FY2021-011 is to authorize GHURA’s participation in Section 108, 
formally with specific tasks identified. 

● Resolution FY2021-011 authorizes the loan and for the Executive Director to 
execute agreements necessary to accomplish the task. 

● Resolution FY2021-11 has been composed and reviewed by legal counsel. 
● Director Topasna requested that the board familiarize itself specifically with 

Sections 1-6 on page 4 of 42.  
● Attorney Perez added that GHURA, HUD and TLI anticipate closing on the 

Section 108 loan by April 22nd and advised the board of the flurry of 
documents that will require signatures from GHURA. He indicated that what 
this process proposes to do, in addition to approving GHURA’s participation 
in the program, is to have the Executive Director sign off on all documents 
when necessary.  

● Director Topasna added that the goal is to complete the construction phase 
of this project by the beginning of SY2022.  

                      
                Chairman Flores inquired about whether the designs and permitting process were  
                complete. Ms. Taitano confirmed this. Ms. Taitano added that this is the first time that  
                GHURA has participated in a Section 108 loan, but has had excellent communications   

 with HUD Honolulu and HUD DC office regarding the CDBG Section 108. Ms. Taitano            
also confirmed that the project is $30,000,000. Attorney Perez stated that all 
documents that need to be signed will be vetted through HUD DC and HUD Honolulu. 
There will be multiple layers of review of documents that GHURA will enter into. 
Commissioner Ishizaki indicated that the HUD and GHURA liability is $12M for the loan 

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 3 of 6



 

 

 

guarantee, but inquired on the total cost of the project. Ms. Taitano stated that the total 
cost was between $32M and $34M. He inquired about whether GHURA is comfortable 
with iLearn Academy’s financing. Attorney Perez indicated that repayment of the loan 
is through legislative appropriation. Ms. Taitano also added that iLearn Academy is 
being conservative in their revenue projections, which is the annual per child limit. 
The iLearn Academy Charter School will have an expanded campus to handle more 
students; K-5 Stem oriented education programming. She also indicated that should 
the loan not be paid, the guarantee would be initiated by the CDBG 108 group. Director 
Topasna requested that Ms. Taitano elaborate on what the process is if the loan is not 
repaid.  Ms. Taitano stated that should the loan not be repaid, an allocation of CDBG 
funds is pledged to ensure that repayment is made on a regular basis, but GHURA will 
also ensure that the building is used purposefully and meeting a national objective for 
HUD, which is to benefit a low mod population. There were no further discussions. 

 
         [046/21] Chairman Flores made a motion to approve Resolution No. FY2021-

011 as previously recited and as listed in everyone’s packaged agenda. 
Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. With no objections by the other 
board members, the motion was passed.  

 

 

V.      CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS 

             1.  [047/21] A/E Manager’s Update 
                   Mr. Andrew Manglona reported on behalf of Mr. Sonny Perez. He stated the   
                   following updates: 
 

 Sinajana Arts Center- wall pour was on April 6, 2021. Completion status is at 
40%. Scheduled completion is 10/2021. 

 Guma Famalaoan- Groundbreaking was on March 30, 2021. Inland Builders to 
install construction barrier within the project limits on April 12, 2021. 

 Umatac Baseball Field-commencement of work on the architectural fixtures in 
the restrooms, and the installation of electrical panels for side lightings. 
Completion status @ 72%. 

 Inarajan Basketball Court- Permitting is under review with DPW.  
 MTM- Bid documents to be advertised within the month. 
 Guma Trankilidat- 8 Units awarded. 
 MOD Projects- 11 Units awarded. Processing additional Bid Packet for 8 more 

units. Ongoing active MOD projects is approximately 30+ units. 
 HOME Projects- Processing five properties for Affordable Homes Construction 

Project bids.  
 UPCOMING PROJECTS: 

1. New Community Center for AMP1 
2. Environment Controls for Drainage for AMP4-scope of work is 

completed.  
  
                  Director Topasna commended Mr. Perez and his team for all their hard work    
                  despite the challenges brought on by the impact of COVID19. He stated that   
                  GHURA continues to do its best to meet HUD’s timeliness schedule.  

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 4 of 6



 

 

 

 
                  Ms. Taitano added that the HOME Investment Partnership Grant Program, that  
                  Mr. Perez and his team are processing will provide income eligible households  
                  the opportunity to purchase their first home.  
 
                  There were no further discussions. 

 
 

      2.  [048/21] 2021 LIHTC QAP/Application - DRAFT (for review) 
                  Chairman Flores stated that LIHTC is a low income Housing Tax Credit  
                  Qualification Application Plan and an Application draft for the Commissioners to 
                  review.  Director Topasna indicated that GHURA has been able to build over a  
                  thousand units through the low income tax credits program. He then deferred  
                  the presentation to Ms. Katherine Taitano.  
 
                  Ms. Taitano stated the following: 

 Before the board is the Draft Qualified Allocation Plan (QAP) for the 2021 
issuance of the Low Income Tax Credit Program Competition. 

 Included is the overview and summary of proposed changes made from 
the last allocation plan. 

 A public comment period will be completed for the coming allocation. 
 Normal processes included running the competition every 2 years. 
 QAP will come back with comments which will be presented to the board. 
 Upon approval from the board, it will then be opened to the competition. 
 The criteria set before the board is what companies will be evaluated 

against. 
 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the length of time available for public 
comment. Ms. Taitano stated that during the comment period, the public is 
informed and interested parties make their inquiries. The process normally 
lasts 30 days.  
 
There were no further discussions.  

 
Chairman Flores thanked Ms. Taitano for her presentation and indicated that 
the board would review the draft.  
 
 

VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. [049/21] Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Friday, May 7th @ 12:00 

p.m. 

 

Chairman Flores announced the next proposed scheduled meeting of May 7, 2021. 

Due to the lack of a quorum for the next proposed meeting date, Chairman Flores 

stated that a date would be determined and confirmed later. 

 

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 5 of 6



 

 

 

He also informed the board that a confirmation hearing was held for a new Resident 

Commissioner. Director Topasna added that a vacancy on the board, still remains and 

that the Governor may appoint someone shortly. 

 

Director Topasna announced that GHURA received clean opinions on both its 

Financial Statements and on Compliance. He added that the last time GHURA received 

a clean opinion on its audit was in 2012. He commended GHURA’s hard working team 

and the board for providing the employees with unyielding support.  

 

Chairman Flores extended his kudos to the hard-working GHURA employees for not 

only working towards a clean audit, but also in their timeliness.  

 

 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 

        [050/21] Chairman Flores motioned to adjourn the meeting and Commissioner            

Delia seconded the motion. There were no objections to the motion. The motion 

passed and the meeting adjourned at 12:42PM.  

Board Minutes of April 08, 2021 PAGE 6 of 6



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2021-012 

 

Moved by:     Seconded by:  ___________  
 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING AND CONGRATULATING THE GHURA 

APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM GRADUATES CLASS OF 2021 (COHORT #3) 

 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners and the Executive Management acknowledges 

the importance of a highly-skilled workforce, and the necessity for employee 

training and development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are committed to recognizing and commending 

the achievements of the Authority’s employees; and 

 

WHEREAS, in March 2012, focusing on enhancing the skills of the GHURA maintenance 

personnel, Acting Executive Director Ray S. Topasna entered into an 

agreement with officials of the U.S. Department of Labor - Office of 

Apprenticeship and the Guam Community College, to formally adopt the 

apprenticeship standards for the Maintenance Repairer, Building occupation; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a month later in April 2012, Acting Executive Director Topasna successfully 

attained approval from the U.S. Department of Labor - Office of 

Apprenticeship, the second apprenticeship standards for the Office 

Manager/Administrative Services occupation; and 

 

WHEREAS, with Cohort #3 having completed all the academic requirements and on-the-

job training hours, the following graduates are awarded the distinction of 

earning the Journey Worker Certificate in their respective apprenticeship 

occupational category: 

 

William M. Aisek, Maintenance Worker 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Maintenance Repairer, Building 

 

Jeanna Rosemarie A. Blas, Housing Specialist 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

 

Maritess Liban Bondal, Interviewer Clerk 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

 

Joseph Jay Cruz, Data Control Clerk II 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

 

 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 1 of 12



Erica Ann C. Gumataotao, Interviewer Clerk 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

 

Maria Magdalena Mendiola, Administrative Assistant 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

 

Michael M. Orot, Maintenance Worker 
Journey Worker Certificate 

Maintenance Repairer, Building 

 

    Remedios P. Taitague, Interviewer Clerk 

Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services 

    

  Virginia M. Torres, Housing Specialist 
Journey Worker Certificate 

Office Manager/Administrative Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners are proud to recognize these employees’ 

diligence, commitment and determination in successfully completing the 

GHURA Apprenticeship Program; and therefor be it 

 

RESOLVED, the Board of Commissioners issues this resolution commending and 

congratulating the graduating Class of 2021 - Cohort #3; and be it further 

 
RESOLVED, the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive 

Director attest the adoption hereof Resolution No. FY2021-012, and that 
thereafter shall be presented to each graduate, whereby a copy shall be placed 
in his/her official personnel folder, and a copy provided to the Governor of 
Guam. 

 

IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – MAY 14, 2021. 

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:    

NAYS:     

ABSENT:  

ABSTAINED:   
 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 

and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by 

the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

Board of Commissioners on May 14, 2021. 

 

 

(SEAL) _____________________________ 

RAY S. TOPASNA 

Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 2 of 12



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY
ATURIDAT GINIMA YAN RINUEBAN SIUDAT

MEMORANDUM:

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: RayS.Topasna ^\ / d
Executive Director \L^^ y

DATE: May 10,2021

SUBJECT: Contract Cancellation Due to Non-Responsiveness / Intent of Award
Project: GHURA-10-02-2020 Renovation of 8 Public Housing
Units Contractor: Excellent Construction, Inc.

At the Regular Board Meeting of December 18, 2020 the above subject project was
approved for award. Intend of Award was issued to Excellent Construction, Inc. for Bid
Item No.1 and to O.H. Construction for Bid Item No. 2. Due to the un-responsiveness
of Excellent Construction we request to cancel the bid award for Bid Item No. 1 and
award it to the next lowest bidder, O.H. Construction.

The A/E Division has reached out numerous times via phone and email to Excellent
Construction for the submission of required documents with no response. On March 30,
2021 a Notice of Contract Termination was issued to Excellent Construction for non-
responsiveness. A request to acknowledge the receipt of the Notice still has not been
received. A chronology of events to justify the determination of un-responsiveness is
attached.

Supporting Documents:
BOC Memorandum

• Memo to Supply Manager Administrator with chronology of events
Notice of Contract Termination

The Intent of Award was issued since December 22, 2020, over 4 months ago. HDD
approved the unit to be placed under Unit Modernization with the date of completion of
June 30, 2021. The contract duration for the completion of the two units in the Scope
of Work is 60 days. Due to the un-responsiveness of the contractor we will not be able
to meet the HDD determined completion date and will have to request HDD for an
extension.

Excellent Construction bid proposal for Bid Item No. 1 is $62,790, the next lowest
bidder is O.H. Construction at $74,900. Based on our staff's review and determination,
we are requesting that the Board approve the request to cancel the bid award for Bid
Item No. 1 to Excellent Construction and award the contract to the next lowest
responsible/responsive bidder, O.H. Construction.

 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 3 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 4 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 5 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 6 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 7 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 8 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 9 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 10 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 11 of 12



 
Board Meeting of May 14, 2021

 
PAGE 12 of 12




